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CITY OF STAMFORD 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION ADVISORY COMMISSION 

888 WASHINGTON BOULEVARD 
STAMFORD, CT 06904 -2152 

 
To: Vineeta Mather,  Land Use Bureau  
From: David W. Woods, AIA, NCARB, LEED-AP 
Subject: Recommendations for 0 Walton Place & 80 Prospect Street  
 HPAC Preliminary Review 
Date: August 2, 2022 (meeting date)  
 
At the HPAC regular meeting held Tuesday, August 2, 2022, the Commission heard a 
presentation of the development proposal for 0 Walton Place in Stamford. The 
Commission’s review was “advisory only,” as the development team has not requested 
the use of historic bonuses or approvals. The following is a record of the Commission’s 
discussion.  
 
In general, the Commission expressed its gratitude for the presentation and is 
encouraged that the development team has proposed to save the historic 1913 church 
structure. The Commission further supported the concept design intent, noting that it 
shows respect for the historic church building. The Commission further understood that 
the 1960s addition, on the north side, will need to be demolished in order to make way 
for the new residential tower construction. The Commission, by unanimous consent, 
made the following additional recommendations. 
 
1. Request that a plaque be provided that commemorates the historic church. The 

owners also offered to provide an interpretive panel within the immediate site.  
2. Encourage the owners to submit the historic building to the City’s Cultural Resources 

inventory. The owners indicated that this application is in process. It was noted that 
the owner may want to contact Preservation Connecticut to see if the project can fit 
into state historic grant programs.  

3. HPAC requests that the owners provide further definition of the plan use areas that 
are labeled as “amenity spaces.” That includes clarification of whether some of those 
spaces can be public gathering areas. 

4. HPAC requests that the character of the interiors of the church be saved and restored 
with the understanding that there may be an adaptive reuse of the main historic 
sanctuary space. The Commission encourages keeping the features of the sanctuary 
space intact, including many of the fixtures, and visible framing / ceiling features, and 
the historic windows.  

5. HPAC supports the “public amenity space” requirement that is a part of the 
development proposal, in coordination with the City’s Master Plan, Category 11, and 
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the RH-D district. The Commission further encourages using those funds within the 
immediate area of the proposed development.  

6. The Commission encourages the development team to work with the City to use those 
“amenity” funds for improvements to Latham Park, and Prospect and Bedford Street 
connections. The planning should include improvements to vehicular and pedestrian 
connections, safety and amenities.  

7. The Commission requests that that development team return to a future meeting to 
provide progress plans for the adaptive reuse and restoration of the church’s interior 
and exterior spaces.   

 
HPAC understands the Land Use Boards may have other considerations for review that 
are beyond the scope of HPAC recommendations. Those may include bonuses, set-
backs, parking, and dwelling requirements, that are in the Zoning Code.  
 
 
 
David W. Woods, AIA, NCARB   
Chair:  Historic Preservation Advisory Commission. 
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MATT QUINONES
Email: MQuinones@StamfordCT.gov

September 9, 2022

To: Vineeta Mathur  Principal Planner

From: 

Subject:

80 Prospect Street - Walton Place LLC & 80 Prospect Street Partners LLC

The Engineering Bureau received Zoning application documents for the redevelopment of a site including 

repurposing a 1900s church building, removal of a 1960s addition and former retail building and addition of a new 

224 unit multifamily residential apartment building with green space and covered parking. The Engineering Bureau 

also received Zoning application documents for a Text Change to amend Section 6 and Map Change documents 

proposing a rezoning from the present R-H & C-L zoning districts to the RH-D zoning district.

The following documents were reviewed:

-SE-1 through SE-8 Depicting 1 Walton Place & 80 Prospect Street Prepared for Walton Place LLC & 80 Prospect 

Street Partners LLC by Redniss & Mead dated 7/19/22

-Property and Topographic Survey Depicting 0 Walton Place & 80 Prospect Street Prepared for First 

Congregational Church by Redniss & Mead dated 7/19/22

-Zoning Location Survey Depicting 0 Walton Place & 80 Prospect Street Prepared for Walton Place LLC & 80 

Prospect Street Partners, LLC by Redniss & Mead dated 7/19/22

-Site Engineering Report 1 Walton Place & 80 Prospect Street Prepared for Walton Place LLC & 80 Prospect 

Street Partners LLC by Redniss & Mead dated 7/19/22

-Landscape Plans SPL-1.0, through SPL-3.0 Walton Place by Eric Rains Landscape Architecture, LLC latest 

revision 7/19/22

The Engineer of Record, Bret Holzwarth, P.E. stated, "Based on the above information, the proposed improvements 

are designed in accordance with the City of Stamford Stormwater Drainage Manual and will not adversely impact 

adjacent or downstream properties or City-owned drainage facilities."

The Engineering Bureau does not object to the proposed Text Change and Map Change since they do not affect the 

authority of this department, however, regarding the proposed development, the following shall be addressed by a 

Willetta Capelle P.E. - Coordinator of Site Plan Reviews and Inspections

0 Walton Place

Zoning Application No. 222-25, 222-26, 222-27
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CT professional engineer:

1) A map consolidation must be filed in S.L.R. and an address must be assigned by the Engineering Bureau prior to 

Building Permit issuance.

2) The landscape plans show proposed lighting in the City's Right of Way. Confirm the lighting requirements with 

the City's Energy and Utility Manager.

3) Add 1/2" expansion material between the curb and walk on the Concrete Curb detail.

4) Sheet SE-2: Bedford St - review location and elevations for TC 27.3, BC 26.8.

5) Retaining walls shall be designed, inspected and certified by a CT professional engineer.

6) Add a pavement restoration detail for Bedford Street since it is an arterial road, which requires a binder 

thickness of 4 1/2 inches. Clarify that the detail showing the 2 1/2 inch binder thickness is for Walton Place and 

Prospect Street.

7) Verify that the pipe between MH #4 and MH #5 has a self cleaning velocity of 2.5 fps, per the Drainage Manual 

requirement. Verify the slope shown on sheets SE-3A and SE-8.

8) Identify all proposed drainage structures on sheet SE-3B.

9) Specify the City's invert detail on the 8 ft manhole detail.

10) Sheet SE-8: Retain-It Detail Plan View - inlet pipe is 8" pvcp from roof leaders and the outlet pipe is a 12 " 

pvcp.

11) Confirm the top of stone elevation for the permeable pavers on sheet SE-3A since it is inconsistent with the 

detail on sheet SE-8.

12) Clarify the Retention Volume Required values on page 6 of the Site Engineering Report.

13) The Engineering Bureau reserves the right to make additional comments.

Please contact me at 203-977-4003 with any questions.

Bret Holzwarth

Bob Clausi

Frank Petise

CC: Reg. No.
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     To:   Vineeta Mathur, Principal Planner 

 

From:   Kristin Floberg, Senior Planner  

 

    Re:   CT Statutory Referral to WestCOG from Stamford - Attached Zoning Amendment 

 

Date:   August 5, 2022 

 

Thank you for submitting the attached referral to WestCOG.  

 

The opinion of WestCOG staff is that the proposal is of local interest and with minimal 

intermunicipal impact. Therefore, it is not being forwarded to adjacent municipalities and the 

regional staff is making no comment. 
 
 
From: Briscoe, Tracy <TBriscoe@StamfordCT.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, August 4, 2022 8:31 AM 
To: Kristin Floberg <kfloberg@westcog.org> 
Subject: City of Stamford - Zoning Board - New Application 222-26 
 
Hi Kristin, 
 
Please see attached a new application for your review and comments. 
 
Thanks  
Tracy     
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